
 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 South Main Street 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 
Umatilla Special Library District Board 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Thursday, December 28, 2023, 5:30 pm 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86495600385?pwd=U0thK1BVQ2EwQklFcU5EUkc1Qjc4UT09 

Meeting ID: 864 9560 0385 

Passcode: 424064 

One tap mobile 

+19712471195,,86495600385#,,,,*424064# US (Portland)                                                                                                         

Dial by your location +1 971 247 1195 US (Portland)                                                                                                           

Meeting ID: 864 9560 0385                                                                                                                                                     

Passcode: 424064 

 
425 South Main Street, Pendleton, OR  97801 and  

 

Agenda 

Call to order-  

Regular Meeting  

President 

Call the Roll & Establish Quorum        Secretary to the Board 

Approval of the Agenda            President 

 

Topic Lead Purpose Outcome 

Public Comment – Limited to Two Minutes 
Per Person 

President  

Limited to 30 Minutes Total                                               Please sign up 

Anyone may come forward at this time.  Comment on any topic not on the Agenda.  Public comment 
will be invited on Agenda items at time of consideration.  Only those who sign up will be heard at that 
time.  Only Board directed general discussion permitted 

 

Minutes – 

Board Meeting – November 16, 2023 

President Approval 

Calendar Update Director  

Correspondence Director Information 



 

Topic Lead Purpose Outcome 

Reports  Director  

• Financial Statements 

o Accountants’ Report – October & 

November 2023 

o Banks & Pool Balances    

Director Approval 

 

• Staff Monthly Reports Director Information 

Board Training   

• SDAO training on Leave… Board Information 

Old Business 

• Sick Leave Policy Discussion 

• Emergency Plan Update 

 

Board 

Director 

 

Discussion and decision 

Discussion and next steps 

   

New Business   

• Board Workshop dates and topics Board Discussion and decision 

• Acceptance of FY22-23 Audit Board Decision 

• Magazine costs added to Lib2Go Board Discussion and Decision 

• Budget calendar Board Decision 

• New County CIP agreement Board Decision 

• Governing Documents and Policy Review – 

EDI & A and Updates  

o Sick Leave Policy 

o  

Board Review & Approval 

Each month a new set of governing 
documents and policies will be 
reviewed with an equity, diversity, 
inclusion and anti-racism lens, as 
well as updating policies as needed.   

Good of the order    Everyone  

Next District Board Meeting – January 25, 
2023 

 Information 

 

Adjourn President Motion 

 

Sign language interpretation will be provided for the public if requested 48 hours before the meeting; 

notice 72 hours before the meeting is preferred. Requests may be made to Heather Estrada at 541-276-

6449. 



 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 S Main Street 

Pendleton, OR  97801 

 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 
 

Minutes 
Board of Directors Meeting 

November 16, 2023, at 5:30 pm 
District Office (425 S. Main St., Pendleton Oregon) & via Zoom 

 
ATTENDANCE BOARD  
Caty Clifton, President   Sharone McCann, Vice President 
Nick Nash   Kathy Thew 
John Thomas 
 

ATTENDANCE STAFF   
Heather Estrada, District Director 
Dea Nowell, Technical Services Manager (via Zoom)  
 

ATTENDANCE – VISITORS 
none   
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Board President Caty Clifton called the Board Meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 

CALL THE ROLL & ESTABLISH QUORUM 
Heather Estrada stated that all five (5) Board Members were present in the office, thus we have a quorum. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Caty Clifton noted a minor edit under New Business – the dates listed for the acceptance of the State Library 
statistical reports and the ALSP/Strategic Plan Reviews should read FY2022-23.  Nick Nash moved to approve the 
agenda as amended.  John Thomas seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 

MINUTES 
Board Meeting: October 26, 2023 – Nick Nash moved to approve the October 26, 2023, minutes as presented.  
Kathy Thew seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

CALENDAR UPDATE 
Heather Estrada noted she is planning to attend the Helix Library Board meeting on November 30 and the 
Weston Library Board on December 5, which will be Kathleen Schmidtgall’s last meeting as she is retiring at the 
end of the calendar year.  She commented that as part of grand jury duty last week they toured EOCC and that 
was very interesting as she had never been there. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE  
Heather Estrada commented that there was no correspondence. 
 
REPORTS 



 

p. 2 of 4 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – October 2023 
Heather Estrada commented that the financial statement for October is not yet ready due to our early meeting 
date this month.  She mentioned that the back statements are on the Board’s SharePoint site though. 
 
STAFF MONTHLY REPORTS 
Heather Estrada noted her biggest thing lately was the in-service.  She thinks it went fine.  She reviewed the 
evaluations with the Board, and it was noted that all the responses were positive responses.  Heather shared 
that they had their last EDI cohort on Monday in Eugene and that the timing was good for Heather, as it brought 
things back in specifics and she got some ideas for moving forward with it.  Caty Clifton stated that Heather did a 
fantastic job – developing, facilitating, and delivering a fantastic program.  Heather stated she is still catching up 
with email, etc., though making progress. 
 
Heather said that Dea Nowell was here and super helpful with in-service, from putting together the PowerPoint 
to running the tech end.  Heather also stated it was good for her to see the library staff face to face.  Dea 
commented that she had an aha moment while traveling and visiting with someone when they mentioned that 
she does consulting and realized that she does indeed do some of that – the Board concurred. 
 
Heather commented that Monica Hoffman is back in the swing and that things are beginning to settle down with 
work related pieces. 
 
Caty Clifton again expressed thanks to the staff for all the reports – she finds them very helpful. 
 
BOARD TRAINING – SDAO TRAIING ON LEAVE… 
Heather Estrada commented that she meant to pull some things out of some videos on leave and didn’t get to it.  
She did comment on the SDAO Conference; she will be going to Molalla on Friday of the conference for the high 
school swimming finals.  She also has been looking into lodging reservations and verified with Board Members 
attending that they were okay with an Airbnb rather than a hotel, as the cost savings would be significant. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
EMERGENCY PLAN UPDATE 
Heather Estrada stated that Caty Clifton gave some notes on updates to the emergency plan.  They included 
things like grouping response procedures by topic, as well as a couple of additional topics.  She suggested that 
the plan have version numbers and be reviewed or refreshed annually, and that monthly safety topics could 
highlight these topics as well. 
 
SICK LEAVE POLICY DISCUSSION 
There was much discussion among the Board and Director regarding possible approaches to this topic.  Heather 
Estrada noted that she would also have Rob Tremper look over whatever we propose for feedback; as well as 
legal counsel if needed, etc.  Some of the comments from the Board included:  adding additional hours under 
certain situations is helpful and succinct; leave pool idea; do we want to move forward with writing a new draft 
policy while continuing to research concurrently; do we need to consider value of sick leave based on different 
employee salary or does it matter (a token hour – in regards to hours, not to value); do we know what other 
districts use; starting with a number of hours (such as forty (40) hours); leave donation limitations; should we list 
out exhaustion options first; we need to study Paid Leave Oregon and explore all options – bring all options to 
bear and number appropriately, how to donate into a pool – end of year, periodically, etc.; ability to donate all 
hours over cap until drop below; catastrophic situation can donate accordingly (need-based); ongoing seems to 
be the only thing that makes sense due to small staff and capacity); relations strong among the three (3) 
employees – could cause some potential tension; need to budget for…; out of box thinking in terms of recruiting 



 

p. 3 of 4 

new employees – looking forward to future, good plus; last year speaking of salary – sick leave benefits are part 
of if all.  The consensus of the Board during and following the discussion was to concurrently draft a policy while 
study the legality of it, and the possibility of seeding a pool.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
NICK’S OFFER OF GRANT WRITING HELP 
It was noted that Caty Clifton, following the last Board meeting, had concerns about Nick Nash’s offer to help the 
libraries with grant writing due to his business.  Checking the box, this will be from Nick as a citizen and Board 
Member, not as a businessman.  Nick stated yes that was his intent, pro bono as a citizen – he was planning to do 
a presentation, which he doesn’t see as a huge contribution.  Kathy Thew moved that this had been discussed and 
the Board is giving their approval to Nick Nash helping the libraries with fundraising and grant writing.  John 
Thomas seconded the motion.  The motion passed with four (4) Board Members’ approval; Nick Nash abstained 
from the vote. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF FY2022-23 STATE LIBRARY STATISTICAL REPORTS 
Heather Estrada shared with the Board where these are located on the Board SharePoint site in a folder titled 
“Library Submissions” and broken down by fiscal year submissions.  Heather noted that we currently have 
statistical reports from 8 libraries, and another was received from a library, but not in a format that is workable 
for us, so the State Library staff are working on that.  Heather noted that a couple more may have come in that 
she hasn’t seen since she sent out a reminder.  Nick Nash made a motion to accept the State Library statistics 
that have been received, with several pending.  John Thomas seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF FY2022-23 ALSP/STRATEGIC PLAN REVIEWS 
There was conversation about the logistics of where these are stored – website and/or SharePoint.  Dea Nowell 
noted that we only post two (2) fiscal years reports on the website.  For clarification, it was noted that this is the 
written portion of the review that can be posted on the website for public review.  It was noted that we give 
wide latitude as to the presentations themselves, but we need some sort of written piece for public 
presentation on our website.  Heather Estrada noted that she will be sure to put it out front next year as a 
reminder.  Sharone McCann moved to accept the reviews we have in hand and directed Heather to ask again for 
the missing ones.  Nick Nash seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF FY2023-24 FINAL BUDGETS FOR LIBRARIES 
Heather Estrada noted that we have received FY2023-24 budgets from Helix, Hermiston, Pilot Rock, and 
Stanfield libraries.  John Thomas moved to accept the four (4) budgets received.  Kathy Thew seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
GOVERNING DOCUMENTS AND POLICY REVIEW – EDI & A AND UPDATES:  
SICK LEAVE POLICY 
Heather Estrada noted that this was discussed earlier in the meeting. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER  
Caty Clifton shared two things.  She was a substitute teaching history today in the Athena/Weston School 
District and noted that CTUIR came to the schools today and along with their Native American club did a 
drumming circle and dance, with a drum built for it.  She also commented on two stories in the EO on November 
11th – on Paid Leave Oregon, and the Helix story which had a quote by Heather Estrada; Caty said thanks to 
Heather for her professional handling of the issue, especially for a non-issue. 
 



 

p. 4 of 4 

Everyone was wished a happy Thanksgiving. 
 
NEXT DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
The next Board Meeting will be on December 28, 2023, at 5:30 pm.   
 
ADJOURN 
Kathy Thew moved to adjourn the meeting.  Sharone McCann seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:270 pm by Board President Caty Clifton.   
 
Respectfully submitted by Dea Nowell 





















 

 

UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Five Months Ended November 30, 2023



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Page 
 

ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT 1 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balance -  
 All Fund Types – Budgetary Basis 2 
 
 Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
 Fund Balance – Budget and Actual– Budgetary Basis: 
 
  General Fund 3-4 
  Resource Sharing Fund 5 
  Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 6 
  Outreach Fund 7



 

1 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Umatilla County Special Library District 
Pendleton, Oregon 
 
 
Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Umatilla County Special 
Library District (a governmental organization), which comprise the schedule of assets, liabilities, and 
fund balance – all fund types - budgetary basis of as of November 30, 2023 and the related schedule 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance – actual and budget – all fund types – 
budgetary basis for the five months then ended, in accordance with the budgetary basis of 
accounting and for determining that the budgetary basis of accounting is an acceptable financial 
reporting framework.  We have performed the compilation engagement in accordance with 
Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and 
Review Services Committee of the AICPA.  We did not audit or review the financial statements nor 
were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the 
information provided by management.  We do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any 
form of assurance on these financial statements. 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the budgetary basis of accounting in 
accordance with Oregon Budget Law, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Management has elected to omit substantially all the disclosures ordinarily included in financial 
statements prepared in accordance with the budgetary basis.  If the omitted disclosures were 
included in the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the 
organization’s assets, liabilities, and fund balance – all fund types – budgetary basis, and the related 
schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance – all fund types – budgetary 
basis. Accordingly, the financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about 
such matters. 
 
We are not independent with respect to Umatilla County Special Library District. 
 
 
 
December 15, 2023 
 



   

General Fund
Resource 

Sharing Fund

 Capital 
Improvement 
Reserve Fund

Outreach 
Fund Totals

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS          
Cash - Banner Bank (1,075,742.65)$    -$                 -$               -$              (1,075,742.65)$   
Cash - LGIP 1,750,513.40       21,832.19         44,040.12      13,229.33     1,829,615.04      
Cash - Banner Bank Savings 19,089.63           -                  -                -               19,089.63           
Accounts Receivable -                      -                   -                 -                -                     
Prepaid expenses 5,719.22              -                   -                 -                5,719.22             

        
TOTAL 699,579.60$        21,832.19$       44,040.12$    13,229.33$   778,681.24$       

         
         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
         

CURRENT LIABILITIES          
Accounts payable - general 158,085.92$        -$                 -$               -$              158,085.92$       
Accrued payroll and benefits 689.50                 -                   -                 -                689.50                

         
Total Current Liabilities 158,775.42          -                   -                 -                158,775.42         

         
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)          
Assigned -                      21,832.19         44,040.12      13,229.33     79,101.64           
Unassigned 540,804.18          -                   -                 -                540,804.18         

         
Total Fund Balances 540,804.18          21,832.19         44,040.12      13,229.33     619,905.82         

         
TOTAL 699,579.60$        21,832.19$       44,040.12$    13,229.33$   778,681.24$       

 Governmental Type Funds

UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCE - 

ALL FUND TYPES - BUDGETARY BASIS
November 30, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report

2



         
 

 Current MTD  Current YTD  Budgeted Amount 

  Actual to Budget 
Variance 

Over/(Under) % Used
REVENUES          
Taxes current year 1,894,979.97$         1,900,955.18$     2,191,544.00$        (290,588.82)$         86.74%
Taxes - previously levied 7,943.39                  14,706.28            45,000.00               (30,293.72)             32.68%
Other income -                           -                      200.00                    (200.00)                  0.00%
Community services fees -                           -                      113,000.00             (113,000.00)           0.00%
Interest earned - LGIP 3,453.05                  8,677.61              7,850.00                 827.61                   110.54%
Interest earned - other 2.02                         7.30                     150.00                    (142.70)                  4.87%

         
Total Revenues 1,906,378.43           1,924,346.37       2,357,744.00          (433,397.63)           81.62%

         
PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES          
District Manager 6,242.00  31,210.00            75,000.00               (43,790.00)             41.61%
Library Tech. Manager 4,892.40                  23,782.50            56,600.00               (32,817.50)             42.02%
Early Literacy Coordinator 4,074.40                  20,186.81            48,400.00               (28,213.19)             41.71%
Payroll taxes 1,069.26                  5,280.15              17,000.00               (11,719.85)             31.06%
Health and accident insurance 4,976.08                  24,877.26            62,850.00               (37,972.74)             39.58%
Worker's compensation 5.56                         399.69                 650.00                    (250.31)                  61.49%
Unemployment 229.21                     1,625.84              2,500.00                 (874.16)                  65.03%
Retirement 3,225.26                  15,940.11            29,000.00               (13,059.89)             54.97%

         
Total Personnel Expenditures 24,714.17                123,302.36          292,000.00             (168,697.64)           42.23%

         
MATERIALS AND SERVICES
Transportation 208.86                     1,530.05              6,000.00                 (4,469.95)               25.50%
Staff training and conferences 96.50                       702.89                 4,000.00                 (3,297.11)               17.57%
Board expenses 643.40                     1,178.16              4,500.00                 (3,321.84)               26.18%
Legal fees -                           -                      5,000.00                 (5,000.00)               0.00%
Audit -                           -                      6,550.00                 (6,550.00)               0.00%
Insurance -                           150.00                 5,300.00                 (5,150.00)               2.83%
Fiscal management 1,250.00                  6,250.00              15,000.00               (8,750.00)               41.67%
Postage -                           -                      500.00                    (500.00)                  0.00%
Office supplies and maintenance 63.03                       1,145.61              5,700.00                 (4,554.39)               20.10%
Telephone 158.70                     792.63                 2,100.00                 (1,307.37)               37.74%
Rent 808.62                     4,043.10              10,100.00               (6,056.90)               40.03%
Ads and notices -                           -                      1,500.00                 (1,500.00)               0.00%
Elections -                           -                      3,000.00                 (3,000.00)               0.00%
Email/website 450.00                     1,962.00              2,525.00                 (563.00)                  77.70%

Total Materials and Services 3,679.11                  17,754.44            71,775.00               (54,020.56)             24.74%
         

SPECIAL PAYMENTS          
Tax distribution to cities 1,522,338.66           1,532,529.12       1,789,235.00          (256,705.88)           85.65%
Community services fee          
   distribution to cities -                           -                      90,400.00               (90,400.00)             0.00%

         
Total Special Payments 1,522,338.66           1,532,529.12       1,879,635.00          (347,105.88)           81.53%

         
Capital outlay -                           1,668.19              4,000.00                 (2,331.81)               41.70%

         
Contingency -                           -                      100,000.00             (100,000.00)           0.00%

         
Total expenditures 1,550,731.94           1,675,254.11       2,347,410.00          (672,155.89)           71.37%

         
Revenues over (under) expenditures 355,646.49              249,092.26          10,334.00               238,758.26            2410.41%

         

         

UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND

For the Five Months Ended November 30, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report

3



OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)          
Transfer to Resource Sharing Fund -                           (85,000.00)          (125,000.00)            40,000.00              68.00%
Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund -                           (10,000.00)         (10,000.00)             -                        100.00%

Total other financing sources (uses) -                           (95,000.00)          (135,000.00)            40,000.00              70.37%
         

Revenues and other financing sources over 
(under) expenditures and          
other financing uses 355,646.49$            154,092.26          (124,666.00)            278,758.26$           

         
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2023   386,711.92  363,982.00     

         
FUND BALANCE, November 30, 2023   540,804.18$        239,316.00$              

See Accountants' Compilation Report

4



         
         
                   

 Current MTD  Current YTD 
 Budgeted 
Amount 

  Actual to 
Budget 

Variance 
Over/(Under) % Used

REVENUES          
Other income -$                  -$                  150.00$            (150.00)$           0.00%
Hermiston and courier reimbursement -                    -                    22,000.00  (22,000.00)        0.00%
Grants - Other -                    -                    3,000.00           (3,000.00)          0.00%

         
Total Revenues -                    -                    25,150.00         (25,150.00)        0.00%

       
MATERIALS AND SERVICES          
Sage Library System -                    62,693.00         59,000.00         3,693.00           106.26%
Courier - County -                    -                    35,000.00         (35,000.00)        0.00%
Catologing utilities -                    -                    500.00              (500.00)             0.00%
Library2Go -                    13,709.00         14,500.00         (791.00)             94.54%
Programs and training 646.60              1,482.66  18,000.00  (16,517.34)        8.24%
Cooperative programs and activities -                    1,165.06           6,000.00           (4,834.94)          19.42%
Grant expenses - Other -                    -                    3,000.00           (3,000.00)          0.00%
Marketing -                    -                    5,000.00           (5,000.00)          0.00%

Total Materials and Services 646.60              79,049.72         141,000.00       (61,950.28)        56.06%

Contingency -                    -                    31,150.00         (31,150.00)        0.00%
         

Total expenditures 646.60              79,049.72         172,150.00       (93,100.28)        45.92%
         

Revenues over (under) expenditures (646.60)             (79,049.72)        (147,000.00)      67,950.28         53.78%
         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)          
Transfers from General Fund -                    85,000.00         125,000.00       (40,000.00)        68.00%

         
Total other financing sources (uses) -                    85,000.00         125,000.00       (40,000.00)        68.00%

         
         

Revenues and other financing sources over 
(under) expenditures and other 
financing uses (646.60)$           5,950.28           (22,000.00)        27,950.28$        

         
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2023   15,881.91  22,000.00     

         
FUND BALANCE, November 30, 2023   21,832.19$       -$                     

         
        
        
       
       
       

UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
RESOURCE SHARING FUND

For the Five Months Ended November 30, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report 5



         
         

 Current MTD  Current YTD 
 Budgeted 
Amount 

  Actual to 
Budget 

Variance 
Over/(Under) % Used

         
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from General Fund -$                 10,000.00$      10,000.00$      -$                 100.00%

Revenues and other financing sources over 
(under) expenditures  
and other financing uses -$                  10,000.00         10,000.00$       -$                   

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2023   34,040.12  34,040.00            
         

FUND BALANCE, November 30, 2023   44,040.12$       44,040.00$          

         
         

         
         
        
       
       

UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT RESERVE FUND

For the Five Months Ended November 30, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report

6



         

 Current MTD  Current YTD 
 Budgeted 
Amount 

  Actual to 
Budget 

Variance 
Over/(Under) % Used

REVENUES          
State Ready to Read Grant -$                  -$                  9,320.00$         (9,320.00)$        0.00%

         
Total Revenues -                    -                    9,320.00           (9,320.00)          0.00%

         
MATERIALS AND SERVICES         
Take Off materials and supplies 15.24                219.84              3,500.00           (3,280.16)          6.28%              
State Ready to Read material 2,389.20           5,266.45           9,320.00           (4,053.55)          56.51%            
Take Off transportation 96.89                705.22              5,000.00           (4,294.78)          14.10%            
Outreach materials and supplies -                    -                    2,000.00           (2,000.00)          0.00%

         
Total materials and services 2,501.33           6,191.51           19,820.00         (13,628.49)        31.24%

         
Contingency -                    -                    7,540.00           (7,540.00)          0.00%

         
Total expenditures 2,501.33           6,191.51           27,360.00         (21,168.49)        22.63%

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,501.33)          (6,191.51)          (18,040.00)        11,848.49         34.32%

         
Revenues and other financing sources over 
(under) expenditures          
and other financing uses (2,501.33)$        (6,191.51)          (18,040.00)        11,848.49$        

         
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2023   19,420.84         18,040.00            

         
FUND BALANCE, November 30, 2023   13,229.33$       -$                     

        

         

     
       

UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
OUTREACH FUND

For the Five Months Ended November 30, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report

7



 

 

17 SW Frazer Ave – Suite 360 

PO Box 1689 

Pendleton, OR  97801 

 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 

12/21/23 Monthly District Director Report 
 

Date: December 21, 2023 Board Meeting 

Staff Name: Heather Estrada 

Time Period Report Covers: November 13, 2023 – December 22, 2023 

 
1. Position Purpose Statement 

 
The mission of this position is to manage the operations of the UCSLD and support and 
strengthen the development of excellent library services in Umatilla County by working in 
partnership with the independent libraries.  
 

2. Meetings and Site Visits 

Date Meeting/ Site Visits/ 

Activity 

Method What happened 

11/13/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

11/13/2023 DEI cohort in Eugene   In-Person 

Last training session for cohort, 

presented on In-service and how this 

training informed our district in-service 

11/14/2023 Let’s talk about Race webinar WebEx  Continuing ed conversations  

11/15/2023 Pendleton Library Board In-Person 
Attended Pendleton Public Library 

Board meeting to meet members. 

11/15/2023 
Monthly Staff and Safety 

Meeting 

In-Person & 

Teams 

Monthly meeting, safety topic: 

Indoor Air Quality  

11/16/2023 Water Damage webinar Zoom 
CE on water damage to inform our 

EAP. 

11/16/2023 Monthly Board meeting In-person Regular monthly board meeting,  

11/20/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

11/21/2023 GO! Article turned in  On-line 
Monthly marketing article in 

newspaper 

11/23-

24/2023 
Thanksgiving Vacation  Holiday Out of office 

11/27/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 



 

11/29/2023 Grand Jury  In-Person Grand Jury Duty in Pendleton 

11/30/2023 Complete PERS reporting On-line Monthly reporting  

11/30/2023 Helix Library Board Meeting In-Person 

Attended Helix Library Board 

meeting to meet members and 

support Annette. 

12/1/2023 
“So you want to talk about 

Race” book club 
In-Peson 

Attended book club on book we 

used at In-service to continue 

education and conversation.  

12/4/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

12/5/2023 
Meeting with Claudia from 

CAPCO 
In-Person 

Capco would like libraries help for 

PIT count in January. 

12/5/2023 Weston Library Board Meeting In-Person 

Attended Weston Library Board 

meeting to meet members and 

support and celebrate Kathleen. 

12/6/2023 
Meeting with Jennifer 

Costley 
In-Person 

Meeting to discuss cataloging 

issues and options should they lose 

their cataloger.  

12/7/2023 
Adams library craft 

afternoon 
In-Person 

Participated in Holiday craft at 

Adams library. 

12/11/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

12/11/2023 Great Oregon Book Read In-Person Stanfield’s Book Read  

12/12/2023 
Webinar on sustainable 

libraries 
Zoom 

CE for possible topic for April In-

service 

12/13/2023 
Webinar on libraries and Jail 

partners 
Zoom 

CE for possible new outreach 

areas. 

12/18/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

12/20/2023 Staff and Safety Meeting Teams  
Monthly safety meeting and check in 

with staff 

12/20/2023 Meeting with Sage DeLong In-Person 

Meeting to introduce and see how 

UCSLD could help in County 

Emergencies 

    

 
 
 
 
 



 

3.  Projects and Progress 

Project Status % Complete 

In-Service Training Fall In-Service complete, all posted and 
documented  

100% 

Audit Audit finished and filed with State.  Just 
needs Board acceptance   

95% 

Agreements for Library 
Services 

All 12 libraries complete 
 

100% 

Public Records 
Management 

The records are about 75% complete – 
procedures are being written and the 
outline of the filing structure will be 
available for staff 

75% 

Performance Appraisals All staff are in and completed.  Quarterly 
check-ins set up.   

50% 

Community Needs 
Assessment 

Feedback received.  Board to discuss 
what’s next. 

80% 

Succession Planning Policy and plan to be written   5% 

Disaster Planning More research done on background. 
Working on final document  

85% 

Marketing Plan Ongoing EO column, plan will be part of 
strategic planning process 

70% 

Office 365 A portion of the UCSLD checks is on bill 
pay 

Ongoing 

Best Practices for SDAO Heather submitted document 100% 

Safety & Staff Meetings December: Fake News: How to plan for it, 
combat it. 
January: City Driving (Transportation) 

ongoing 

ALSP Coming in Call for 23-24 ALSPs out.  All in 100% 

Budget Process All documents into the assessor  100% 

 
4.  Feedback & Accomplishments 

• Had a chance to visit 3 library board meetings.  Boards were happy to have the 
chance to connect. 

• Audit documents finished early! 
 
5.  Upcoming Events – Activities 

• December 25&26th – Christmas holiday 

• December 27-29 – District on Courier Duty 

• December 28th – December Board Meeting 

• January 1st – New Year’s Day Holiday 

• January 11th – Athena City Council Meeting 

• January 15th – MLK Holiday 

• January 25th – January Board Meeting 

• February 8-11th – SDAO annual conference in Seaside 



 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 S Main Street 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 

 

Date: December 28, 2023 

Staff Name: Dea Nowell 

Time Period Report Covers: November 2023 
 

1. Position Purpose Statement 
 

The purpose of this position is to support the UCSLD member libraries’ abilities to 
provide services and participate in consortia activities through cataloging (maintaining 
the integrity of the bibliographic database and authority control) and technical support.  
Additionally, this position also administratively & technologically supports the UCSLD 
Board of Directors and staff. 
 

2. Statistics 
 

cataloging statistics: 

 

* Item 
additions 
to Sage 

* Item 
deletions 

from Sage 

* Item 
corrections 

in Sage 

Temporary 
bibs 

upgraded 

*** Sage 
bib     

fixes 

*** Sage 
bib 

merges 

*** Sage 
bib 

deletes 

*** Sage 
bib 

overlays 

Nov. 2023 351 197 102 0 66 14 1 1 
           

  
  

* for the most part all libraries in District: except Hermiston, Milton-Freewater, Pendleton,   
  & Umatilla [though I do add a few bibs to Sage for Umatilla, counted in here, but not items]   

   

  *** looking strictly at bibliographic records, not necessarily all are related to District libraries' holdings 
 

reports run: 
regular monthly: item stats: all 

12 pub. lib. 

 
temp bibs 
missed put 
into bucket 

OCLC 
CatExpress stats 
(added & 
deleted) 

circulation related:  
Adams PL – 3 
Pilot Rock PL - 1  
Stanfield PL – 4 
Milton-Freewater – 3 
Weston - 1 

pre-cataloged items: 
Milton-Freewater PL-1 
Ukiah P/SL - 1 

 

in process items: 
Milton-Freewater PL-1 

additionally: pre-catalogued items & items with status “in process” reports:  Adams PL, Echo 
PL, Helix PL, Hermiston PL, Stanfield PL, Umatilla PL, BMCC Lib. 

 Helix PL – report of patrons filtered by expiration date 

 Athena PL – Adult Fiction weeding report, no circulation in 5 years 

 Helix PL – inventory reports for Large Print & Oregon/Pacific NW collections 
 

3. Meetings and Site Visits       
 

▪ UCSLD in-service [in person]:  1  (11/3) 
▪ UCSLD Board meetings [via Zoom]:  1  (11/16)  
▪ Staff/Safety meetings [via MS Teams]:  1  (11/15)  
▪ Sage Cataloging Mentor meetings [via GoToMeeting]: 1  (11/29)  
▪ webinars/trainings attended [virtual]:  

o SafePersonnel – Indoor Air Quality Awareness (11/13) 
o Streamline – Artificial Intelligence (AI): Opportunities & Risks for Districts (11/15) 
o Streamline – Is Your Website ADA Compliant? (viewed 11/30 from 11/8 archived webinar) 

▪ meet weekly, Monday mornings, with Heather [via MS Teams]: 3 (11/13, 11/20, 11/27)  
 

visits to/with District Libraries: 

• Adams PL - 3  [in person, email]   
 site visit 
 email reply to query about the items (attached to temp bibs) I’d requested to see 
 emailed reply to voicemail 



 

 p. 2 of 3 [12/13/23] 

• Athena PL - 3  [phone]   
 call re. needing a barcode for an item (left a message) 
 call re. 2 items – one request for barcode change and one above; then spoke a bit 

about call #s for Playaway & Wonderbook items 
 returned missed call - re. shelving location for classics; & talked through Playaway & 

Wonderbook info tags & spine labels, etc. 

• Echo PL - 3  [email, in person, phone]   
 emailed to get city clerk’s last name for in-service sign-in sheet 
 site visit 
 call re. Wonderbook call # & shelving location – getting a grant for more later & may 

change call #s & shelving location later 

• Helix PL - 7  [in person, phone, email]   
 site visit 
 emailed re. items returned at site visit not checked in yet (rec’d courtesy notice re.) (2) 
 call re. email requesting I give a call – re. a batch of call # changes from 9xx’s to other 

Dewey #s (director trying to catch up with assistant re. as well);  
 call re. list of changes sent on Tues. - hold off on making any changes to that list… + 

fwd the email & also sent a list of the barcodes that could be loaded into catalog to 
see details (2) 

• Hermiston PL - 1  [in person]   
 site visit with cataloger and director 

• Milton-Freewater PL - 7  [in person, phone, email]   
 site visit with cataloger and director 
 call to cataloger re. a video having issues filling a hold with (2) + emailed re.  
 emailed cataloger re. a bib when doing review of new bibs 
 call to cataloger to speak about the video issue as was referenced in email from Beth 

that morning – explained what I could and left in cataloger’s hands to have 
conversation with director re. next steps – offered help with next steps if needed 

 emailed director reply that I would indeed remove the specific piece from their item 
shelving locations 

• Pendleton PL - 1  [email]   
 emailed a link to the OLAC video game genre list we spoke about at site visit [follow-up] 

• Pilot Rock PL - 2  [in person, email]     
 site visit 
 emailed link to documentation asked for re. deleting expired patron accounts 

• Stanfield PL - 3  [in person, text, phone]   
 site visit 
 rec’d text re. wanting help with receipt template, well maybe next time; I replied let’s 

talk about one of these days so I know what you need… 
 rec’d call checking to see if I’d rec’d ay emails from her that day or recently (phone 

had been acting a bit weird lately…) 

• Ukiah Lib. - 2  [in person, phone]   
 site visit 
 called re. call # & physical description for an item to be added to catalog 

• Umatilla PL - 2  [in person, email]   
 site visit 
 emailed director a reply to a question asked during site visit I need to follow up on 

• Weston PL - 1  [email]   
 email reply to a note back from director 

• Beth Ross [Sage Library System - Systems Administrator] - 4  [email] 
 cc email to Jon Georg re. Milton-Freewater item & replies (3) 
 cc email to Jon Georg discovered possible new wrinkle 

• Jon Georg [Sage Library System Specialist] - 4  [email] 
 email re. Milton-Freewater item – asking to look into now that we had some specifics 

identified & replies (3) 



 

 p. 3 of 3 [12/13/23] 

 emailed re. previous issue, as I just discovered a possible new wrinkle not noticed 
previously & reply  

• Joan Mielke-Earle [Umatilla County Public Health Department] – 2  [phone] 
 returning missed call/voicemail – following up on presentation at in-service, looking to 

get some feedback from the libraries – spoke with Heather beginning of week about 
sending out a survey, wondering if it had been sent out yet, if not could she get email 
addresses for the libraries [I told her I could send them &/or they were on the website 
(director’s name is hyperlink to email address)]; I spoke with Heather and reported 
back that the survey had been sent out (2) 

 

4. Projects and Progress  
 

• spring site visits – 100% complete  

• assisted with in-service – 100% complete 
 

5. Accomplishments  
 

• removed LearningExpress Library from library Gale Pages (everyone except Hermiston 

PL & Milton-Freewater PL, whose pages I do not do for them) – no longer part of the 
statewide library contract 

• website work: 
 Board agendas & minutes posted 
 in-service agenda, presentation slides, & handouts posted 
 updated library information [I checked in w/ each director during site visits to verify 

the information we had listed on website for each library]  

• Sage Cataloging Mentor: 
 emailed a fellow mentor re. a bib template she had put together that I told her I’d go 

through with comments, suggestions, etc. (3) 
 emailed another fellow mentor a couple of resources I found re. a project he & I are 

working on in identifying specifics for “serial” monographs for catalogers (2) 
 email reply to a cataloger asking about creating Library of Congress call numbers & 

found some resources that may be helpful to her (2) 
 new bibs reviewed (Oct. 2023 – total: 182)  

• Other: 
 met with Kathy Thew to assist her learning about and her way around the 

Board’s SharePoint site (tips, navigating, etc.) 

 met with Monica to help set up/schedule Zoom for OLA CSD board meetings 
 

Feedback received: 
• 11/13/23 – email from Lili Schmidt (Milton-Freewater PL director) after I sent her the monthly 

statistics:  “Thank you! It was lovely to see you!” 

• 11/21/23 – email from Lisa Hauner (Sage Cataloging Committee Chair & fellow mentor) after I 
sent a reply to her re. the bib templates she had put together and asked me to review:  “And 

this is why I NEED you to proof read me ☺  … Thank you for catching the template!! …. I am 

so happy you are finding these ‘guides’ helpful ☺ I appreciate that feedback and since all I’ve 

ever wanted to do was make you a proud mentor, I’ll be basking in this all week ☺  Happiest 

of Thanksgivings, Dea!! I am thankful for you and getting to be a part of Sage cataloging <3 
How far we’ve come!” 

 

6. Upcoming Events - Activities    
 

• webinars – Dec. 4, 5, & 12 

• Sage Cataloging Committee meeting – Dec. 5 

• Sage Circulation Committee meeting – Dec. 12 

• Staff/Safety meeting – Dec. 20 

• Sage Cataloging Mentor meeting – Dec. 27 

• UCSLD Board meeting – Dec. 28 

• Holidays: Christmas & New Year’s Day – Dec. 25-26, Jan. 1 

• vacation – Dec. 22 & Jan. 2 



 

 

425 S. Main Street 

PO Box 1689 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
takeoff@ucsld.org 

Phone (541) 612-2052 

 

 
Date: December 21, 2023 

Staff Name: Monica Hoffman 

Time Period Report Covers: November 2023 

 
Position Purpose Statement: 
The Program Manager creates and implements outreach services to childcare, 
preschool, and public library sites throughout the county, fostering a love of 
reading and promoting kindergarten readiness through the development of early 
literacy skills targeting children ages birth to six. 
 
Statistics: 
Attendances at Library Storytime’s are kept separately as Take Off! 
Childcare/preschool Storytimes so the libraries can count those attendees for their 
statistical reports. 

Book Box Statistics Boxes/kits Books 

To Sites with Storytime 48 912 

To Sites without Storytime 23 437 

Total 71 1349 

Storytime Statistics Library Storytimes Childcare Storytimes 

Storytimes Provided 3 41 

Adults in Attendance 17 123 

Children in Attendance 22 523 

Total Attendance 39 646 

 
Meetings and Site Visits:  
Friday November 3, 2023-UCSLD All Staff In-Service in Pilot Rock 
Tuesday November 7, 2023-Athena  

• Athena Public Library Storytime with Stephanie 
Wednesday November 8, 2023-McNary/ Umatilla 

• Umatilla Head Start Enhanced Storytime and materials exchange with Janie. 

• Umatilla Early Head Start Storytime and materials exchange with Favi. 

• McNary Heights morning class Storytime and materials exchange with Katy. 

• Umatilla Head Start afternoon class Storytime and materials exchange with 
Crystal. 

• McNary Heights afternoon class Storytime with Katy. 
Thursday November 9, 2023-Hermiston 

• Victory Square Storytime and materials exchange with Nikki 

• Victory Square Storytime and materials exchange with Andrea. 

• Oregon Child Development Coalition Storytime with Jaime, materials 
exchange with Kimberly 

Monday November 13, 2023-Hermiston 

• Cathy Wamsley Early Learning Center Storytime and materials exchange 
with Yesenia 

• Hermiston Child Development Center Storytime and materials exchange 
with Claire  



 

• Hermiston Child Development Center Storytime and materials exchange 
with Johanna 

• Hermiston Center for School Readiness at Rocky Storytime and materials 
exchange with Ayerim 

• Misty's In-home Childcare materials exchange 

• Bethlehem Lutheran Preschool materials exchange 
Tue Nov 14, 2023- Helix  

• Helix Public Library Storytime 
with Annette 

Wed Nov 15, 2023-Pendleton 

• Staff and Safety Meeting 

• Elsie's In-home Childcare 
Storytime and materials 
exchange  

• Jen's In-home Childcare 
Storytime and materials 
exchange 

• Mindy's In-home Childcare 
materials exchange. 

• Pioneer Relief Nursery materials 
exchange with Cheri and 
MaryChris 

Thu Nov 16, 2023-Hermiston 

• Hermiston Child Development 
Center Storytime with Claire  

• Good Shepherd Children's 
Center Pre-K storytime and 
materials exchange with Tigers 
and Otters 

• Good Shepherd Children's 
Center toddler storytime and 
materials exchange with 
Monkeys and Giraffes and 
Penguins 

Fri Nov 17, 2023- Virtual 

• Oregon Library Association Children’s Service Division Board Meeting. 

• Oregon Library Association Board Meeting  
Tue Nov 21, 2023- Stanfield 

• Stanfield Patriot Heights Storytime and materials exchange with Ruby 

• Stanfield Elementary School morning class Storytime and materials 
exchange with Debbie and Stacey 

• Stanfield Public Library Storytime with Cecili 

• Stanfield Elementary School afternoon class Storytime with Debbie and 
Stacey 

Mon Nov 27, 2023- Hermiston 

• Punkin Center morning class Storytime with Payton 

• Punkin Center morning class Storytime with Becca 



 

• Punkin Center morning class Storytime with Charmayne 

• Punkin Center afternoon class Storytime and materials exchange with Payton 

• Punkin Center afternoon class Storytime and materials exchange with Becca 

• Punkin Center afternoon class Storytime and materials exchange with 
Charmayne 

Tue Nov 28, 2023- Milton Freewater 

• Little Pioneers morning class Storytime with Amanda 

• Freewater Early Childhood Special Education morning class Storytime and 
materials exchange with Sherry 

• Lily's Kids Academy Storytime and materials exchange with Lili 

• Oregon Child Development Coalition materials exchange with Tifanie 

• Freewater Early Childhood Special Education afternoon class Storytime with 
Sherry 

• Little Pioneers afternoon class Storytime and materials exchange with Kayla 
and Amanda 

Wed Nov 29, 2023- Milton Freewater 

• Milton-Freewater Head Start Storytime and materials exchange Linda. 

• YMCA Childcare Center 3's at Freewater School Storytime and materials 
exchange with Aiden 

• YMCA Childcare Center 4's at Freewater School Storytime and materials 
exchange with Victor 

• Lil Ardo Material Exchange with Maria 

• Milton-Freewater Head Start Storytime and materials exchange with Amy. 
Thu Nov 30, 2023- Pendleton 

• Playtime Education Storytime and materials exchange with Amber 

• Pendleton Early Learning Center Early Childhood Special Education morning 
class Storytime and materials exchange with Bailey and Jacquelyn 

• Pendleton Early Learning Center Early Childhood Special Education morning 
class Storytime and materials exchange with Corrine 

• Pendleton Early Learning Center Early Childhood Special Education 
afternoon class Storytime with Corrine 

• Pendleton Early Learning Center Early Childhood Special Education 
afternoon class Storytime with Bailey and Jacquelyn 

  
Projects and Progress:  

• Oregon Ready to Read 2023 Grant. 92% complete 

• Collection development/box revisions- ongoing  

• Event marketing slideshows and window display- ongoing 
 
Upcoming Events – Activities: 

• January 8, 2024, Patriot Heights Family Literacy Night Stanfield  
 











UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
P.O. Box 1689 

Pendleton, Oregon   97801 
(541) 276-6449 

 
 
 

 2024-2025 Budget Calendar 
 
 

 
2024 
 
2/16  Notify Library Directors of projected tax income and distribution estimates 
 
3/1  Send notice of Budget Committee Meeting to East Oregonian (EO) 
 
3/5  1st notice of Budget Committee Meeting published in EO & on UCSLD web site  
 
3/12  2nd notice of Budget Committee Meeting published in EO & on UCSLD web site 
 
3/21  Budget Committee meets and approves proposed budget 
 
4/1  Send Notice of Budget Hearing to East Oregonian  
 
4/9  Notice of Budget Hearing published in EO & on UCSLD web site  
 
4/18  Budget Hearing, adopt budget, make appropriations and declare tax levy 
 
July 15  Deadline to submit levy, appropriation resolution and budget to County Assessor & Clerk 


